RECEIVED

By mgulchen at 2:12 pm, Dec 13, 2017

WILLOW EDUACTION DBA BAY AREA TECHNOLOGY SCHOOL

ALEMEDA COUNTY

OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information Year Ended June 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	3
THANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Financial Position	3
Statement of Activities	4
Statement of Cash Flows	5
Notes to the Financial Statements	6
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	16
Organization Structure	16
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance	17
Schedule of Instructional Time	18
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis	19
Reconciliation of Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited Financial Statements	20
Notes to the Supplementary Information	21
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS	22
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	22
Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance	24
AUDITOR'S RESULTS, FINDINGS & RECOMMENDATIONS	27
Schedule of Auditor's Results	27
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs	28
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings	30

P. Robert Wilkinson, CPA Brian K. Hadley, CPA



Aubrey W. King, CPA Kevin A. Sproul, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School Oakland, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, as required by the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated December 12, 2017, on our consideration of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co., LLP El Cajon, California

December 12, 2017



Statement of Financial Position June 30, 2017

ASSETS

Current Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	657,916
Accounts receivable	Ψ	374,326
Prepaid expenditures		130,968
Total Current Assets		1,163,210
Noncurrent Assets		
Capital assets, net		11,708
Total Noncurrent Assets		11,708
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	1,174,918
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS		
Current Liabilities		
Accounts payable	\$	66,225
Accrued expenses		127,295
Total Current Liabilities		193,520
Total Liabilities		193,520
Net Assets		
Unrestricted		961,004
Temporarily restricted		20,394
Total Net Assets		981,398
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	\$	1,174,918

Statement of Activities Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUE AND SUPPORT	Unrestricted	Temporarily Restricted	Total
Revenue			
LCFF state aid, current year	\$ 1,780,952	\$ -	\$ 1,780,952
LCFF state aid, prior year	(7,419)	-	(7,419)
Education protection account funds	407,344	-	407,344
Payments in lieu of property taxes	650,307	-	650,307
Federal revenue	-	226,787	226,787
Other state revenue	332,535	15,857	348,392
Other local revenue	31,426	-	31,426
Total Revenues	3,195,145	242,644	3,437,789
Net assets released from restrictions:			
Grant restrictions satisfied	222,250	(222,250)	
TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT	3,417,395	20,394	3,437,789
EXPENSES			
Certificated salaries	1,300,423	-	1,300,423
Classified salaries	371,236	-	371,236
Taxes and employee benefits	453,891	-	453,891
Books and supplies	164,320	-	164,320
Rentals, leases and repairs	284,259	-	284,259
Other operating expenditures	554,379	-	554,379
Special ed encroachment	170,544	-	170,544
Depreciation expense	1,201		1,201
TOTAL EXPENSES	3,300,253		3,300,253
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS	117,142	20,394	137,536
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR	843,862		843,862
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR	\$ 961,004	\$ 20,394	\$ 981,398

Statement of Cash Flows Year Ended June 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES	
Change in Net Assets	\$ 137,536
Depreciation	1,201
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets	
to net cash provided by operating activities:	
(Increase) Decrease resulting from changes in assets:	
Accounts receivable	(7,404)
Prepaid expenses	(97,905)
Increase (Decrease) resulting from changes in liabilities:	
Accounts payable	26,435
Accrued expenses	125,371
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 185,234
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS	185,234
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR	 472,682
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR	\$ 657,916

Notes to the Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2017

A. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School (School) is a charter school located in Oakland, California that provides sixth through twelfth grade education to approximately 300 students. The School was created under the approval of the Oakland Unified School District and the California State Board of Education, and receives public per-pupil funding to help support their operation. The School is economically dependent on Federal and State funding.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) No. 958, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations. Under ASC No. 958, the School is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets:

- Unrestricted net assets represent expendable funds available for operations, which are not otherwise limited by donor or grant restrictions.
- Temporarily restricted net assets consist of contributed funds or grants subject to donor or grant imposed restrictions contingent upon specific performance of a future event or a specific passage of time before the School may spend the funds.
- Permanently restricted net assets are subject to irrevocable donor restrictions requiring that the assets be
 maintained in perpetuity usually for the purpose of generating investment income to fund current
 operations.

The School had no permanently restricted net assets during the year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid debt equity instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

Investments

The School's method of accounting for investments, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, is the fair value method. Fair value is determined by published quotes. Changes in fair value of investments results in increases or decreases in unrealized fair values of equity investments. Adjustments to fair values are reflected as unrealized gain/loss on investments in the accompanying statement of activities. The School's policy is to follow the fair value measurement and reporting requirements contained in FASB ASC 820. At June 30, 2017 the School did not have any investments.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable arise in the normal course of operations. It is the policy of management to review the outstanding accounts receivable at year end, as well as bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts for uncollectible amounts. No allowance was considered necessary as management believes that all amounts are collectible.

Capital Assets

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or estimated fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The cost of assets sold or retired and related amounts of accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the School's earnings. Management has elected to capitalize and depreciate all assets costing \$5,000 or more; all other assets are charged to expense in the year incurred. The School's policy is to evaluate the remaining lives and recoverability in light of the current conditions. It is reasonably possible that the School's estimate to recover the carrying amount of the property and equipment will change. Estimated useful lives range from three to ten years depending on the asset.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition or when resources are received by the School prior to the School meeting the requirements for legal claim to the resources.

In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the School has legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of financial position and revenue is recognized.

Revenue Recognition

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any restrictions.

All donor or grant restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

Contributed Materials and Services

Contributed materials are recorded at their fair market value where an objective basis is available to measure their value. Such items are capitalized or charged to operations as appropriate. The School receives services donated by volunteers in carrying out the School's operations. The services do not meet the criteria as contributions and are, therefore, not recognized in the financial statements.

Donated Property and Equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contribution of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, the School reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. The School reclassifies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets at that time.

LCFF Revenues and Payments in Lieu of Property Taxes

The School's primary funding source is a combination of local property taxes and state revenues. The California Department of Education computes the local control funding formula (LCFF) on statewide charter school rates multiplied by the School's average daily attendance (ADA) as reported at the Second Principal apportionment period (P2). The result is then reduced by property tax revenues transferred from the District to the School, which is funding in lieu of property taxes and education protection account funds paid by the state under proposition 30. The remaining balance is paid from the state General Fund, in the form of LCFF State Aid. LCFF funding sources, inclusive of state and local sources, made up 82% of the school's revenue. The School is not at risk of losing these funding sources, as long as the school maintains a steady level of ADA, as these funding sources are mandated by the California State Constitution to fund schools.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred.

Income Taxes

The School is a 509(a)(1) publicly supported non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Sections 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School is also exempt from California franchise or income tax under Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The School may be subject to tax on income which is not related to its exempt purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2017, no such unrelated business income was reported and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made.

The School follows provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in ASC 958. The School recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as part of the income tax provision, when applicable. There are no amounts accrued in the financial statements related to uncertain tax positions for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

The School files informational and income tax returns in the United States and in the state of California. The federal income tax and informational returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service for three years after the returns are filed. State and local jurisdictions have statutes of limitation that generally range from three to five years.

Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 12, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

B. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Bank

The School's cash (\$657,916 as of June 30, 2017) is held in financial institutions which are either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a limit of \$250,000 per depositor or certain non-interest bearing accounts that are fully insured by the FDIC. As of June 30, 2017, the School had cash that was exposed to uninsured deposit risk in the amount of \$453,747.

C. Accounts Receivable

As of June 30, 2017 accounts receivable consisted of:

	Accounts Receivable	
Federal Government:		
Federal Grants	\$	1,451
State Government:		
LCFF Revenue		168,136
Education Protection Account		92,490
Lottery Revenue		29,063
Other State Grants		22,733
Local Sources:		
In Lieu of Property Taxes		59,411
Other Local Sources		1,042
Total Accounts Receivable	\$	374,326

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

D. Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2017 capital assets consisted of:

	Beginning Balance	Increases	Decreases	Ending Balance
Leasehold improvements	173,234		159,150	14,084
Total capital assets	173,234	-	159,150	14,084
Less accumulated depreciation	(160,325)	(1,201)	(159,150)	(2,376)
Capital assets, net	\$ 12,909	\$ (1,201)	\$ -	\$ 11,708

E. Accounts Payable

As of June 30, 2017 accounts payable consisted of:

	Accounts		
	F	ayable	
Vendors payable	\$	65,941	
Accrued payroll liabilities		110,360	
Pension related benefits		16,935	
Other liabilities		285	
Total Accounts Payable	\$	127,580	

F. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consisted of restricted grants which have not yet been fully expended. Once the funds have been expended for allowable purposes, they will be reclassified to unrestricted net assets. As of June 30, 2017 temporarily restricted net assets consisted of:

College Readiness Grant	20,394
Total Temporarily Resticted Net Assets	\$ 20,394

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

G. Functional Expenses

As of June 30, 2017 functional expenses consisted of:

	Management and				
	Program Services			General	 Total
Salaries and wages	\$	1,310,283	\$	361,375	\$ 1,671,658
Pension plan accruals and contributions		141,846		48,828	190,674
Other employee benefits		171,800		47,382	219,182
Payroll taxes		23,351		19,212	42,563
Fees for services (non-employees):					
Management		-		158,419	158,419
Legal		-		23,958	23,958
Accounting		-		4,000	4,000
Professional consulting		99,957		-	99,957
Other		-		4,888	4,888
Advertising and promotion		6,939		-	6,939
Office expenses		889		-	889
Information technology		37,004		-	37,004
Occupancy		275,988		-	275,988
Travel		24,049		-	24,049
Conferences, conventions and meetings		16,269		-	16,269
Depreciation		1,201		-	1,201
Insurance		-		33,063	33,063
All other expenses: Books and supplies		164,320		-	164,320
All other expenses: Equipment		8,271		-	8,271
All other expenses: District oversight		-		28,312	28,312
All other expenses: Special Education		170,544		-	170,544
All other expenses: Student activities		38,728		-	38,728
All other expenses: Tution reimbursement		52,536		-	52,536
All other expenses: All other		25,368			25,368
Total expenses	\$	2,569,343	\$	729,437	\$ 3,298,780

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

H. Commitments and Contingencies

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The School has received federal and state funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not be material. As a result, no liability has been accrued.

Sick Leave

Sick leave is accumulated without limit for each employee at the rate of one day for each month worked. Leave with pay is provided when employees are absent for health reasons; however, the employees do not gain a vested right to accumulate sick leave. Employees, therefore, are never paid for any sick leave balance at termination of employment or any other time. Therefore, it is not appropriate to accrue the value of the accumulated sick leave.

I. Employee Retirement System

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). The risks of participating in these multi-employer plans are different from single-employer plans in the following aspects:

- 1. Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of the other participating employers.
- 2. If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers.
- 3. If the School chooses to stop participating in some of its multi-employer plans, the School may be required to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.

The School's participation in these plans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is outlined in the table below. The "EIN/Pension Plan Number" column provides the Employee Identification Number (EIN) and the three-digit plan number, if applicable. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Protection Act (PPA) zone status available in 2016, 2015 and 2014 is for the plan's year-end at June 30, 2017, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The zone status is based on information that the School received from the plan and is certified by the plan's actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone are less than 80% funded, and plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded. The "FIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented" column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (FIP) or a rehabilitation plan (RP) is either pending or has been implemented. Finally, the number of employees covered by the School's multiemployer plans increased from 2016 to 2017, affecting the period-to-period comparability of the contributions for years 2016 and 2017. The increase in covered employees corresponded to an increase in overall business. There have also been significant changes that affect the comparability of the 2015 and 2016 contributions for similar reasons.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

	EIN/ Pension Plan	Pension Protection Act Zone Status Year Ended June 30			FIP/RP Status Pending/
Pension Fund	Number	2017	2016	2015	Implemented
CalSTRS	01095	Yellow	Yellow	Yellow	No
CalPERS	5925389407	Yellow	Green	Yellow	No
	Cor	ntributions of School	ol	Number of	Surcharge
Pension Fund	2017	2016	2015	Employees	Imposed
CalSTRS	148,764	103,861	73,074	23	No
CalPERS	41,910	27,088	4,543	8	No

CalSTRS:

The School contributes to the State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. Required contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and detailed in Teachers' Retirement Law. Contribution rates are expressed as a level of percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. CalSTRS also uses the level percentage of payroll method to calculate the amortization of any unfunded liability. Copies of the STRS annual report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 95826.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, active plan members were required to contribute between 9.20% and 10.25% of their salary, depending on their hire date. The employer contribution rate was 12.58% of annual payroll. CalSTRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The School made contributions as noted above. For the year ended June 30, 2017 the State contributed \$42,600 (7.0578% of creditable salaries from 2013-14) on behalf of the School.

CalPERS:

The School contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, with the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Active plan members were required to contribute between 6% and 7% of their salary, depending on their hire date, and the School is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer contribution rates for fiscal year 2016-17 were 13.888% of salaries. The School made contributions as noted above.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

J. Subsequent Events

In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2017-02 *Not-for-Profit Entities – Consolidation (Subtopic 958-810)*. FASB issued this update to amend the consolidation guidance in Subtopic 958-810 to clarify when a not-for-profit entity that is a general partner or a limited partner should consolidate a for-profit limited partnership or similar legal entity. ASU 2017-02 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In December 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-19 *Technical Corrections and Improvements*. FASB issued this update to clarify the Accounting Standards Codification and correct unintended application of guidance that is not expected to have significant effect on current accounting practice or create a significant administrative cost to most entities. The amendments include items raised to FASB through Accounting Standards Codification's feedback mechanism. ASU 2016-19 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In October 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-17 *Consolidation (Topic 810)*. FASB issued this update to amend the consolidation guidance on how a reporting entity that is a single decision maker of a Variable Interest Entity (VIE) should treat indirect interests in the entity held through related parties that are under common control with the reporting entity when determining whether it is the primary beneficiary of that VIE. ASU 2016-17 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-07 *Investments – Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323)*. FASB issued this update as a part of their Simplification Initiative by eliminating a requirement to retroactively adopt the equity method of accounting given that there is no clear benefit to users of financial statements. ASU 2016-07 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In September 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-16 *Business Combinations (Topic 805)*. FASB issued this update as part of their Simplification Initiative by amending the presentation of business combinations disclosing the effect on earnings of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any. The amendments in this Update require an entity to present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the amount recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous recognition reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been recognized as of the acquisition date. ASU 2015-16 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

In July 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-11 *Inventory*. FASB issued this update as part of their Simplification Initiative by eliminating unnecessarily complex measurement of inventory at the lower of cost or market given that there were several potential outcomes. Under the new guidance inventory should be measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is defined as the estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and transportation. This measure is in effect for all forms of inventory valuation except Last In First Out (LIFO). ASU 2015-11 becomes effective for the years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-09 *Financial Services – Insurance (Topic 944)*. FASB issued this update to provide guidance on note disclosure requirements for short-duration insurance contracts to increase transparency of significant estimates made in measuring liabilities associated with short-duration insurance contracts. ASU 2015-09 becomes effective for the years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-04 *Compensation – Retirement Benefits (Topic 715)*.

In February 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-02 *Consolidation (Topic 810)*. FASB issued this update to change the analysis that a reporting entity must perform to determine whether it should consolidate certain types of legal entities. ASU 2015-02 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-15 *Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40)*. FASB issued this update to provide guidance regarding management's responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity's ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. ASU 2014-15 becomes effective for years that begin after December 15, 2016. The Charter School has adopted the provisions of this FASB update for the 2017-18 fiscal year.



Organization Structure Year Ended June 30, 2017

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School (Charter #06614) was established in 2003. The authorizing entity is Oakland Unified School District.

GOVERNING BOARD

Name	Office	Term and Term Expiration
Dr. Ayhan Mutlu	President	Two Year Term Expires July 15, 2017
Dr. Mehemet Sen	Treasurer	Two Year Term Expires July 15, 2017
Sefa Isik	Secretary	Two Year Term Expires July 15, 2017
Alretta Grey	Director	Two Year Term Expires July 15, 2018
Arceli Delos Reyes	Director	Two Year Term Expires July 15, 2017
Kairat Sabyrov	Director	Two Year Term Expires October 15, 2018

ADMINISTRATION

Hayri Hatipoglu Principal

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance Year Ended June 30, 2017

	Second Per	riod Report	Annual	Report
	Original	Original Revised		Revised
Classroom Based Attendance:				
Grades 4-6	53.37	N/A	53.79	N/A
Grades 7-8	89.41	N/A	89.80	N/A
Grades 9-12	140.19	N/A	139.09	N/A
Total Classroom Based Attendance	282.97	N/A	282.68	N/A
Total Attendance	282.97	N/A	282.68	N/A

N/A – There were no audit findings which resulted in revisions to the second period or annual reports of attendance.

Schedule of Instructional Time Year Ended June 30, 2017

Grade Level	Minutes Requirement	2015-16 Actual Minutes	Number of Traditional Days	Status
Grade 6	54,000	57,180	180	Complied
Grade 7	54,000	57,180	180	Complied
Grade 8	54,000	57,180	180	Complied
Grade 9	64,800	65,760	180	Complied
Grade 10	64,800	65,760	180	Complied
Grade 11	64,800	65,760	180	Complied
Grade 12	64,800	65,760	180	Complied

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis Year Ended June 30, 2017

	Budget			
	2018	2017	2016	2015
Revenues	\$3,684,512	\$3,437,789	\$3,026,813	\$2,311,956
Expenses	3,427,825	3,300,253	2,678,102	2,200,065
Change in Net Assets	256,687	137,536	348,711	111,891
Ending Net Assets	\$1,238,085	\$ 981,398	\$ 843,862	\$ 495,151
Unrestricted Net Assets	\$1,217,691	\$ 961,004	\$ 843,862	\$ 495,151
Unrestricted net assets as a percentage of total expenses	36%	29%	32%	23%
Total Long Term Debt	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
Average Daily Attendance at P2	307	283	267	247

Reconciliation of Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited Financial Statements Year Ended June 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 annual financial alternative form net assets	\$ 981,398
Adjustments and reclassifications:	
Total adjustments and reclassifications	
June 30, 2017 audited financial statement net assets	\$ 981,398

Notes to the Supplementary Information Year Ended June 30, 2017

A. Purpose of Schedules

Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the School's charter number, district of authorization, members of the governing board, and members of administration.

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measure of the number of pupils attending classes of the School. The purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of State funds are made to charter schools. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

The School receives incentive funding for increasing instructional time as provided by the Incentives for Longer Instructional Day. This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the School and whether they complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46206. Charter schools must maintain their instructional minutes at the 1986-87 requirements as adjusted by Education Code sections later adopted. The School neither met nor exceeded its LCFF target.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

Budget information for 2018 is presented for analysis purposes only and is based on estimates of the 2017-18 fiscal year. The information has not been subject to audit.

This schedule discloses the School's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the School's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance as reported on the Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form to the net assets reported in the audited financial statements.







Aubrey W. King, CPA Kevin A. Sproul, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School Oakland, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards* and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2017-001.

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's Response to the Finding

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the School's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

El Cajon, California

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co., LLP

December 12, 2017

P. Robert Wilkinson, CPA Brian K. Hadley, CPA



Aubrey W. King, CPA Kevin A. Sproul, CPA

Independent Auditor's Report on State Compliance

To the Board of Directors Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School Oakland, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited the School's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810, that could have a direct and material effect on each of the School's state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Management's Responsibility for State Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the State's audit Guide 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the comptroller General of the United States; and the State's audit guide 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. Those standards and audit guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School's compliance with those requirements.

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the School's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

Description	Procedures Performed
Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools	
Attendance	NI/A
Teacher Certification and Misassignments	
Kindergarten Continuance	
Independent Study	
Continuation Education	
Instructional Time	
Instructional Materials	
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers	
Classroom Teacher Salaries	
Early Retirement Incentive	
Gann Limit Calculation	
School Accountability Report Card	
Juvenile Court Schools	
Middle or Early College High Schools	
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment	
Transportation Maintenance of Effort	N/A
Mental Health Expenditures	N/A
School Districts, County Offices of Education and Charter Schools	
Educator Effectiveness	Vac
California Clean Energy Jobs Act	
After School Education and Safety Program	
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds	
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts	
Local Control and Accountability Plan	
Independent Study – Course Based	
Immunizations	
Charter Schools	
Attendance	
Mode of Instruction	
Nonclassroom Based Instruction/Independent Study	
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom Based Instruction	
Annual Instructional Minutes – Classroom Based	
Charter School Facility Grant Program	Yes

The term N/A is used above to mean either the School did not offer the program during the current fiscal year or the program applies to a different type of local education agency.

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in accordance with audit guidelines outlined in the 2016-17 Guide for Audits of California K-12 Local Education Agencies, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2017-001. Our opinion on each program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's Response to the Noncompliance Findings

Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Willow Education dba Bay Area Technology School's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wilkinson Hadley King & Co., LLP El Cajon, California

December 12, 2017



Schedule of Auditor's Results Year Ended June 30, 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued:	Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:	
One or more material weakness(es) identified?	Yes X No
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are	
not considered material weakness(es)?	Yes X No
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?	Yes <u>X</u> No
STATE AWARDS	
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported	
in accordance with 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits	
of California K-12 Local Education Agencies?	X Yes No
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for state programs:	Unmodified

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Year Ended June 30, 2017

The following findings represent significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and/or instances of noncompliance related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance), or the 2016-17 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. The findings have been coded as follows:

Five Digit Code	AB 3627 Finding Type
10000	Attendance
20000	Inventory of Equipment
30000	Internal Control
40000	State Compliance
42000	Charter School Facilities
50000	Federal Compliance
60000	Miscellaneous
70000	Instructional Materials
71000	Teacher Misassignments
72000	School Accountability Report Card

A. Financial Statement Findings

None

B. State Award Findings

2017-001 (40000)

After School Education and Safety Program (ASES)

Criteria

Determine whether the local education agency has established a policy for reasonable early release. Determine whether pupils reported on the report of students served attended a full day of the after school program; or if any pupil attended less than the full day, the attendance was consistent with the established early release policy.

Condition

In reviewing the documentation for the attendance claimed for the ASES program, we were unable to trace several students to documentation showing that the students served the full day of the ASES program, or if students attended less than the full day, that their attendance was consistent with the early release policy. We also noted several students not signing in and out.

Effect

We were unable to determine if several students attended a full day of the after school program or if they attended less than the full day, that their attendance was consistent with the established early release policy.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) Year Ended June 30, 2017

Cause

School site personnel did not fully understand all the requirements and documentation that is necessary to be maintained in order to claim a full day of attendance for students attending the ASES program.

Questioned Costs

Total questioned cost is \$139,508.

Recommendation

We recommend the School provide training to school site personnel working in the ASES program regarding early release policies and procedures. We also recommend school site personnel review sign out sheets daily to ensure parents are signing their students out each day and to ensure sign. The School should also keep written documentation of all early releases and prepare attendance reports based on valid attendance days established by the School's early release policies.

Corrective Action Plan

BayTech will continue to improve assistance to students and broaden the base of support for education in a safe, constructive environment after school. The ASES program will allow BayTech to provide educational enrichment and literacy elements to students in grades 6 to 9. In an effort to comply more stringently with ASES operational requirements, BayTech has contracted the Higher Ground Neighborhood Development Corporation to lead the after-school program. Higher Ground will provide training to our after school liaison and support staff regarding early release policies and procedures. A collaboration between Higher Ground personnel and BayTech's after-school coordinator will result in better oversight when reviewing sign out sheets daily to ensure parents are signing their students out each day. BayTech/Higher Ground will keep written documentation of all early releases and will prepare attendance reports based on valid attendance days established by BayTech's early release policies

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings Year Ended June 30, 2017

Finding/Recommendation	Status	Explanation if Not Implemented
There were no findings reported in the prior year audit.	N/A	N/A